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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Melville, a flat, open tract of land in a secluded area once known as Troopers,
possesses one of the oldest surviving houses in Surry County. The three-bay, story-
and-a-half building with its clipped gables and tall interior end chimneys is built
of brick laid in English bond below the beveled water table and in Flemish bond with
glazed headers above it. While most of the glazed headers have spalled off, the
patterned brickwork indicates, and old photographs confirm, that the gables are decorat
with parallel glazed chevrons. Early nineteenth-century nrine-over-nine and four- ovexr
four sash and window frames are used throughout the house, A mpodillion cornice em-
bellishes the eaves, and three pedimented dormers, probably dating from the early nineg
teenth century, break the front slope of the roof. There is some ‘evidence, in the for,
of scars at the eaves and on the underpinning of the north wall of the house, for the
existence in the elghteenth century of an entrance porch, but it is not pOSSLble to be
certain of this,
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An early twentieth-century screened porch covers most of the front of the house,
and an early nineteenth-century framed leah-to is on the rear. The latter is covered |,
with plain weatherboards, as is the long, one-story, early twentieth-century frame ellf
stretching back from it, and the small, single-story wing attached to the east end of !
the house, The latter is also a frame addition of the early twentieth century. i

Melville has a2 hall-and-parlor plan. One enters the hall (west room), in which the}l
projecting chimney face is flanked by closets, each with a window. The present manteli
dates from the early nineteenth century. It consists of Roman Doric colonettes support
ing a plain frieze with entablature blocks and a shelf with boldly grogect1ng~mold1ngs;
The fireplace surround bears traces of the red paint like that found iy several other |
early houses in Tidewater Virginia. Over each of the exterior doors is a roundheaded .
recess with square shoulders. The whole of the room, including the interiors of the
recesses or niches, has been papered so it is not possible at this time to determine

whether these niches are original to the house. All of the door and window trim and
the double raised-panel rear doors date from the early nineteenth century.

The stairs rise in the parlor but are entered from the lean-to. If there was an
entrance porch, this may have been their original configuration. Otherwise, it is
likely that they were entered from the hall. An early mineteenth-century mantel like
that in the hall enframes the parlor fireplace.

The learrto is divided into three rooms, although the plans of the eastern two may
have been altered. The west room has an original mantel with fluted Roman Doric
pilasters supporting a plain frieze with entablature blocks.

Two frame outhbuildings remain; one is a nineteenth-century smokehouse with a side
lean-tg,and the other is a twentieth-century barn,
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BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION ‘
The bounds follow Timber Neck Creek on the east, and State Route 635 on the sauth

anmd are drawn. arbigrarily on the north and west -~ all to includz2 the wain house,
the smokehouse, barn, and approach from the road.
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‘STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Melville, a broad, flat tract near Surry Court House, possesses one of the

earliest and most interesting houses standing in the county.

Probably built in

the second quarter of the eighteenth century by the Faulcon family, who were pro-
minent in the political affairs of eighteenth - and early nineteenth-century
Surry, Melville is distinguished by its handsome brickwork with its gable-end
chevroning, its clipped-gable roof, and the possible remains of an entraunce tower.
In spite of its small size it is a typical example of the houses erected by the

more prosperous of colonial Virginia planters.

It is set apart from the dwelling

of the lower classes by its careful proportions, fine detailing and brick construction.
Such houses have come to epitomize the best of colonial Virginia's vernacular arch-

itecture.

Melville, with the adjacent tract New Hope, was in the eighteenth century the
seat of Nicholas Faulcon (d. 1783), who inherited land in what was then known as
Troopers or Troopers Arms from his mother, Jane Faulcon, and from his brothers Abraham

and Jacob. :
his two brothers, both in 1727,
Arms.

Nicholas Faulcon probably built Melville sometime after the deaths of
(From Abraham Faulcon he inherited a house at Troopers
It is possible, but not likely, that this was the present house at Melville.)

After his death, Nicholas Faulcon's plantations were distributed among his three

sons, with John Faulcon receiving the 5337-acre Melville tract,,
first appearing in the land tax books for 1812,

held that influential post from 1781 to 180L.

the

name Melville

John Faulcon was Clerk of the Surry
County Court, 1801-1829, a position which he inherited from his brother Jacob, who

There is a tradition that the clerk's

office was at Melville, but that is unlikely, since Jacob Faulcon did not live at
Melville, and the court functions were moved to the present site in 1797, four years

before John Faulcon became c¢lerk. At John Faulcon's death, Melville became the property

of John N. Faulcon.

Melville has been the property of the Savedge family for many years

sently owned by William E. Savedge,
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USGS 7.5' quadrangle (scale:1:24000)
Surry, Va. 1965

MELVILLE, Surry County, Va.

UTM References:

A- 18/341220/4112030 B- 18/341040/4111770
C- 18/340830/4111740 D= 18/341020/4112100
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